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MINUTES 

ASSEMBLY JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 
March 30, 1977 

Members Present: Chairman Barengo 
Assemblyman Hayes 
Assemblyman Banner 
Assemblyman Coulter 
Assemblyman Polish 
Assemblyman Price 
Assemblyman Sena 
Assemblyman Ross 
Assemblyman Wagner 

The meeting was called to order at 8:30 a.m. for committee action 
by Chairman Barengo. 
AB 365: 
Chairman Barengo opened with a report on the sub-committee meet­
ing which was held on March 26, in Winnemucca. He said he felt 
the bill was well received and there were no objections from any 
of the people in Winnemucca to this bill. Mr. Moody was asked to 
give his views on this bill. Mr. Moody stated that he would look 
at this bill and contact those in his district who would be af­
fected by the bill and report back to the committee. 

It was noted that a similar bill to this was introduced and 
passed by the assembly last session and was killed in the Senate. 
However, this bill is somewhat differently written and avoids 
some of the objections which came up last session. 

· SB 132: Mr. Moody also addressed himself to this bill stating 
that his amendment was not related to the oont:ent of this partic­
ular bill. However, it was related to the same section of the 
NRS and what they wanted to do with the amendment was to change 
the voting procedure for changing the bylaws. The amendment 
would make a simple majority, rather than a two-thirds majority, 
necessary to change the bylaws. He said this was requested due 
to the extreme difficulty of getting the 2,000 members of the 
cooperative to respond in a large enough number to make a vote 
valid under the current law. See Exhibits B & _f_ attached. 

AB 35: Mr. Ross moved for No Further Consideration. Mr. Sena seconded 
the motion and it carried unanimously. (Mr. Coulter was not 
present in the room at this time.) Mr. Barengo stated that he 
would draft a letter to the judges stating that the committee 
wished their imput on this measure and that it would be consid­
ered next session. 

AB 78: Mr. Ross moved for No Futher Consideration. Mr. Sena sec­
onded the motion and all members voted yes, except Mr. Barengo 
and Mrs. Wagner (Mr. Coulter was not present in the room at 
this time.) who wished to show a "no vote". 
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Chairman Barengo said that there would be a letter sent to the 
governor and department heads that this committee had been ap­
prised of the situation which exists and that appropriate ac­
tion should be taken across the board to prevent it in each de­
partment or office. 

AB 210: Discussion on this bill was lengthy and Chairman Barengo 
and Mrs. Wagner are going to contact Mr. Woodburn and the prime 
sponsors and try to work out some amendments to the bill which 
will make it more acceptable. The areas to be amended are the 
lenth of time being extended to two years, rather than the 60 
days as now proposed and better notification pro~isions c~nce7n­
ing the creditors. Mr. Coulter entered the meeting at this time. 

AB 227: Mr. Ross moved for a Do Pass. Mrs. Wagner seconded the 
motion and it carried unanimously. (Mr. Banner was not in the 
room at this time.) 

AB 251: This bill was discussed with Mr. Daykin and he is going 
to prepare amendments to the bill and it will be reconsidered 
at that time. A fiscal note which had been prepared by the Fis­
cal Analyst was submitted to the committee and is attached and 
marked gxhibit A. 

AB 256: Mr. Ross moved for an Indefinite Postponement. Mrs, Wag~ 
ner seconded the motion and it carried unanimously. (Mr. Banner 
was not in the room at this time.} 

AB 309: Mrs. Wagner stated that she was going to talk to Larry 
Petty and then report back to the conunittee. Until then, this 
bill will be held in committee. 

AB 349: After discussion on this bill it was decided that it 
should be amended to leave out the word "possesses" on line 3· 
and to delete the word "original" on line 14 and delete line 15 
entirely. Mrs. Hayes moved for a Do Pass as Amended. Mr. Sena 
seconded the motion and it carried unanimously. (Mr. Banner was 
not in the room at this time.} 

AB 377: Mrs. Wagner moved for an Indefinite Postponement. Chair­
man Barengo seconded the motion and all present voted in favor of 
the motion with the exception of Mrs. Hayes, who voted no. (Mr. 
Banner and Mr. Ross were not in the room at this time.) 

AB 451: This bill was discussed and Chairman Barengo divided 
the bill into groups of seven sections each and assigned those 
groups to the committee members for study and this will be heard 
next week at which time Stan Peck will be present to answer the 
questions of the committee members. 

AB 467: Mr. Price moved for an Indefinite Postponement. Mr. 
Ross seconded the motion and it carried unanimously. (Mr. Banner 
was not present in the room at this time.} 

AB 471: Chairman Barengo distributed to the committee copies of 
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cases which pertain to this bill. They are attached and marked 
Exhibits D,L&.!'..:. The conunittee is also awaiting language from 
other states on similar statutes. 

AB 472: This is being held for receipt of a similar Senate bill. 

AB 261: Mr. Daykin stated that the exclusion of the local police 
blotter could be written into this bill as the corrnnittee had 
inquired and he is working on amendments to this bill. The bill 
will be reconsidered when those amendments are received. 

AB 479: Assemblyman Demers explained this bill to the committee 
and said that it was the result of a problem in Clark County. 
Mr. Demers was the first sworn witness before the Judiciary Com­
mittee. He stated that it was the result of a meeting that he 
had had with Commissioner Rottman and two representatives of the 
bail bond business. He stated that the Insurance Commissioner's 
office has some amendments to this bill as it is written and he 
asked that further discussion be delayed until Mr. Merrill can 
come in to testify on this and their changes. Therefore, there 
was no action taken on this bill. 

There being no further business before the conunittee, the meet­
ing was adjourned at 10:45 a.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

~n~d&~~,/ 
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EXH/73/T A 

F I S C A L N O TE 

Date Transmitted ___________ _ 

BDR 18-473 
A.B._~2~51"'-----S.B. ______ _ 

• S T A T E A G E N C Y E S T I M A T E S 

Agency Submitting Department of Administration 

Date Prepared January 24, 1977 

Revenue and/or 
Expense Items 

Hearings Division 

Total 

Fiscal Note 
1976-77 

--~--- •--- --

Fiscal Note 
1977-78 

$276,965 

$276,965 

Fiscal Note 
1978-79 

$268,185 

$268,185 

Continuing 

Explanation (Use Continuation Sheets If Required) 

Local Government Impact YES// 
(Attach Explanation) 

• DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION COMMENTS 

NO /7 
Signature 

Title Director of Administration 

Date ___ J_an_u_a_ry.,___2_4~,_1_9_7_7 ____ _ 

This fiscal note reflects the estimated cost for establishing a new division in the department of 
administration. It does not consider the possible cost reduction to individual agencies currently 
staffed with hearing officer positions or assigned with hearing responsibilities, In order to 
accomplish the functions, as outlined in BDR 18-473, it would be necessary to employ a chief of the 
division, four hearing officers, two legal researchers and clerical help, plus operating monies. 
Source of funding should be noted in the bill. 
This bill provides for charges to be made for services, however, states that monies collected are 
to be deposited to the state general fund. We recommend, for the first biennium because of the 
lack of experience in operating a central hearings division and because of fluctuating case load, 
that the monies received from charges for services be available to the ivi o partially off-
set expenses. 

• LOCAL GOVERNMENT FISCAL IMPACT 
(Legislative Counsel Bureau use Only) 

FN-3 (Revised 8-9-76) 

Date ______________ _ 

Signature _____________ _ 

Title ______________ _ 

PRINTER 

1263 



I 

EXHIBIT~ 

~vada CJ(ural electric cAssociation 
President: 

D. VERNO'.li DALTON 
Clover ltoute 

Wells, Nevada 89835 
Phone 752-3498 

Vice Prestdent: 
La VERN MACHACEK 

Diamond Valley 
Eureka, ,Nevada 89316 

Phone Diamond Valley 3 

Secretary-irea3urer: 
!II. KENT (TIM) HAFEN 

P. 0. Box 236 
Pahrump, Nevacla 89041 

Phone 727-5216 

Mr. Peter T. Kelley 
P. o. Box 722 

M.arch 4, 1977 

Carson City, Nevada 89701 

Dear Pete, 

As we discussed the other day by phone, I am 
sending more detailed information on possible changes 
to rJRS 81. 230 thru 81. 540 concerning Non-Profit Corpor­
ations. 

As you know, Valley Electric Association, 
which serves electricity to Mountain Springs and Sandy 
Valley in Clark County, Pahrump, Amargosa Valley and 
Beatty in Nye County, Fish Lake Valley in Esmeralda 
County and Montgomery Pass in Mineral County is a non­
profit REA financed Cooperative Corporation. As such, 
we come under the above mentioned chapter as do many 
other Cooperative Electric and Telephone Corporations 
in the State of Nevada. 

There is a provision in 81.470-1 that upon 
incorporation a majority can adopt the Bylaws. Further, 
81.470-2 provides that if our original Articles of In­
corporation had so provided, the Board of Directors could 
amend the Bylas>1s. Our articles did not confer this power. 

Then 81.470-2 goes on to say that if Bylaws are 
to be amended or repealed it takes a 2/3 written consent 
of its members. This is the section that Valley Electric 
and i-Jevada Rural Electric Association would like to see 
changed to a simple majority. 

The reason behind this request is that Valley 
Electric has many outdated sections of our Bylw.vs that 
need changing. We attempted this last summer. There 
are parts of our Bylaws that we are operating under and 
by necessity, operating contrary to our Bylaws, such as 
areas served. 
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Mr. Peter T. Kelley March 4, 1977 

We made a vigorous effort at four public dis­
trict meetings, plus two special mail-out requests and 
although the proposed changes were not controversial, we 
could not get a 2/3 written response to changing our By­
laws. Mostly because without personal contact and de­
tailed personal explanation of the proposed changes, people 
felt better about not responding. It is physically and 
economically impossible to make personal contact with each 
of our 2,000 members scattered over four counties. 

Nevada Rural Electric Association, which endorses 
this proposed amendment, is a statewide association of 
Rural Electric Non-Profit Cooperative Corporations. 

If there is concern.in the Legislature that it 
could affect more than the types of Companies we represent, 
then there could be provisions for limiting these changes 
to just non-profit Cooperative Corporations dealing in 
electricity and telephones. I see no reason that this re­
quest should be controversial, nor that it would be unrea­
sonable. It is just unrealistic to require that it be a 
2/3 majority rather than a simple majority. 

I know this request is late in the current Legis­
lative session, because of reasons I explained to you. How­
ever, we would appreciate your best effort in our behalf. 

I am taking the liberty of sending a copy of this 
letter to Senator Mel Close, Chairman of Senate Judiciary, 
Assemblyman Robert R. Barengo, Chairman of Assembly Judici­
ary, along with Senator Blakemore and Assemblyman Moody, 
representing our district. 

MKH:j 

Very truly yours, 
f 

: 7 
c:c,~..::::..::::.::.>,/ ~4£1 's:::/ ___ .J~~ 

, . 

M. Kent (Tim) Ha.fen 
Secretary-Treasurer 

and 
Chairman of the Board 
Valley Electric Association 
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ASSEMBLY ACTION 

Adopted 0 
Lost 0 
Date: 
Initial.: 
Concurred in O 
Not concurred in O 
Date: 
Initial: 

E.KH/,8/T (!_ 

SENATE ACTION ASSEMBLY/ fllMirZ AMENDMENT BLANK 

Amendments to D1fl"JPlc,: / Senate 

Bill./ J>x:f)t,1• b txt:tu No._l.32.. (BDR 7-681 

Adopted 
Lost 
Date: 
Initial: 
Concurred in 
Not concurred 
Date: 
Initial:. 

367 A 

• • 
• Proposed by. Committee on Judiciary 

in • 

Replaces Amendment No. 293A. 

Amend the bill as a whole by adding a new section designated section 5, 

following section 4, to read: 

•sec. 5. NRS 81.470 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

81.470 1. Each corporation incorporated under NRS 81.410 to Sl.540, 

inclusive, must, within 1 month after filing articles of incorporation, 

adopt a code of bylaws for its gove.rnment and management not inconsistent 

with the provisions of NRS 81.410 to 81.540, inclusive. A majoritr vote 

of the members, or the written assent of members representing a majority 

of the votes, is necassary to adopt such bylaws. 

2. The power to make additional bylaws and to alter the bylaws adopted 

under the provisions of sul;isection l shall. be in the members, but any 

corporation may, in its articles of incorporation, original. or amended, 

or by resolution adopted by a [two-thiJ:dsJ majority vote, or by written . 
consent of ·ctwo-~J a majoritu'; of the members, con£er that power upon 

the directors. Bylaws made by the di.rectors under power so conferred, 

may be altered by the directors or by the members. The written consent 

of [two-thirds} a majority of the memb~s [shal.J. suffice} suffices to 

adopt bylaws in addi.t.:::.on to those adopted under the provisions of subsectiQn 

l, and to amend. or repeal any by law. 

3. AlJ. bylaws in force must be copied legibly in a book call.ad the 

Book of Bylaws, kept at all. times for inspection in the ·principal office. 

Until so copied, they shall not be effective or in force." 

Amend the title of the bill, 2nd line, insert: . 

"reducing the vote required to amend. tha bylaws of a cooperative 

corporation;" after "purposes;" • 

1266 



578 Austin v. State [87 Nev. 

CURTIS AUSTIN, APPELLANT, v. STATE OF 
NEVADA, RESPONDENT. 

No. 6300 

December 7, 1971 491 P.2d 724 

Appeal from judgment of conviction and sentence of the 
Fifth Judicial District Court, Nye County; Kenneth L. Mann, 
Judge. 

Defendant was convicted in the district court of possessing 
heroin, and he appealed. The Supreme Court, GUNDERSON, J., 
held that where alleged accomplice's acts in connection with 
heroin allegedly given to him by defendant for purposes of sale 
were such as to render him subject to prosecution in Nevada 
on charge of possession and alleged accomplice was only person 
who incontestably possessed heroin and used H criminally, 
alleged accomplice was in fact an "accomplice," and permitting 
jury to determine alleged accomplice was feigned accomplice 
only and to convict on uncorroborated testimony of alleged 
accomplice was error. 

Reversed; information dismissed and appellant discharged, 
without prejudice to institution of new proceedings. 

THOMPSON and MownRAY, JJ., dissented. 

[Rehearing denied January 10, 1972] 

Harry E. Claiborne and Annette R. Quintana, of Las Vegas, 
for Appellant. 

Robert List, Attorney General, Carson City; William P. 
Bcko, District Attorney, Nye County, for Respondent. 

1. CRIMINAL LAW. 
Defendant's proximity at time of arrest to individual whose 

luggage was subsequently found to contain heroin was insufficient 
"corroboration" of alleged accomplice's testimony that defendant 
knew olher individual possessed narcotics, that defendant owned 
the narcotics, and that defendant therefore constructively possessed 
them throush other individual. NRS 175.291, subd. 1, 453.030. 

2. CRIMINAL LAW. 
Where alleged accomplice's nets in connection with heroin 

allegedly given 10 him by defendant for purposes of sale were 
such as to render him subject to prosecution in Nevada on charge 
of possession and alleged accomplice was only person who incon­
testably possessed heroin and used it criminally, alleged accomplice 
was in fact an "accomplice," and permitting jury to determine 

• 

... 
,, 
I 

;1, 

l 
! 
I 
i 

I 
I ,, 

ii 
;11 ,, 
lj r 
l' 
i 

ti ·, 

~ I 

f 
rll 
:1 
c' 

, l 

: l 
I 

• 

, l _., 

Dcc.1971] Austin v. Stntc 579 

alleged accomplice was feigned accomplice only and to convict 
on his uncorroborated testimony was error. NRS 175.291, subds. 
1, 2, 194.020, subds. 1, 3, S, 19S.020, 4S3.030. 

OPINION 

By the Court, GUNDERSON, J.: 
Convicted of possessing heroin in violation of NRS 453.030, 

appellant Curtis Austin contends that because the State 
adduced no evidence to corroborate its principal witness, Jesse 
Martin, and because Martin's testimony unequivocally estab­
lished Martin was himself an active, corrupt participant in the 
criminal endeavor he ascribed to appellant Austin, the evi­
dence against appellant was therefore insufficient to sustain 
his conviction in view of our legislature's pronouncement that 
"[aJ conviction shall not be had on the testimony of an accom­
plice unless he is corroborated." NRS 175.291(1). We arc 
constrained to agree. 

As counsel for appellant contends, the trial transcript con­
tains nothing inculpatory of Austin except the testimony of 
Jesse Martin, a heroin dealer with a lengthy and varied crim­
inal history who, when apprehended with "a whole bunch of 
narcotics" several months before the incident concerned herein, 
had undertaken to incriminate others in exchange for cash 
and to avoid prosecution for his own criminal activities. With­
out Martin's testimony the record shows only that on October 
3, 1969, Austin drove from Las Vegas to Beatty, Nevada. 
There, at the Exchange Club, a casino-restaurant serving also 
as a bus station, Austin met Tanya Edwards, who had arrived 
by bus from Portland, Oregon, some eight hours earlier. 
Austin bought a glass of milk. Then, both left the casino and 
entered Austin's car; Miss Edwards placed her luggage on the 
rear seat; police officers appeared, showed a search warrant, 
and found heroin concealed in a slipper in Edwards' luggage.' 

Austin thus stands. convicted of possessing narcotics which 

'We can find nothing suspicious or unusual about Austin's meeting 
with Edwnrds, cvidl!ncing Austin knew Edwnrds possessed a quantity of 
narcotics. True, Beatty is approximately 115 miles from Las Vegas; 
however, the highwny is gooc{, for much of the way there is no posted 
speed limit, and Edwards apparently is an attractive woman, commonly 
employed ns a cocktail waitress nnd singer. Men often embark on 
more nrduous journeys for less rcnson than this. They met in a public 
pince: Austin showed no interest in her luggage; his actions were not 
hurried or furtive. Indeed, the pince and time of their meeting tend 
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arrived in Nevada with Edwards, which never !hereafter came 
into Austin's actual possession, and over which he exercised 
no dominion whatever on the date of the alleged offense. There­
fore, it is vital to appreciate that the conviction must be justi­
fie<l, if at nil, on the theory that, through Martin, the State 
proved Austin, as owner of the narcotics, constructively pos­
sessed them through E<lwards, and before her through Martin 
himself.2 Jt is vital, we say, because without recognilion of this, 
Martin's status as an accomplice to the crime charged cannot 
properly be evaluated. The rationale that one participant in a 
criminal scheme is culpable for the others' acts is a sword 
that cuts both ways. And from Martin's testimony a chron­
ology of events emerged, principally on cross-examination, that 
would constitute him an active criminal participant with 
Austin in possession of the heroin concerned. 

;\cl·ording to Marlin. about September 23, Austin proposed 
that Martin leave Las Vegas "to sell narcotics for him"; Mar­
tin agreed, without learning how, where or when he was sup­
posc<l to go. On September 26, Martin testified, he asked 
Austin about the trip; then he learned Austin wanted him to 
leave Las Vegas to market heroin in Portland, Oregon, a city 
with which Martin had no familiarity. Pursuant to instructions 
from Austin, he "checked the bus station and got the amount 
of the fares from Las Vegas to Portland and the time that the 

more to suggest Austin did not know Edwards carried contraband 
than to prove that he did. It seems strange Austin, n black man, 
wouh.l sckl.:l a sm:dl town like llc:,lly for a criminal rcndcz.vous, since 
there blacks arc a relative rarity, There arc at least three answers to 
any suggestion that this may be explained by inferring Austin thus 
sought lo avoid detection. First, Austin could have met Edwards any 
number of places in Las Vegas without the slightest prospect of appre­
hension. Second, if she carried contraband belonging to him and he 
therefore desired not to attract attention to their meeting, it is hard to 
understand why he did not meet her when she first arrived in Beatty. 
Third, if he desired to meet her outside Lns Vegas, to avoid being seen 
with her, he could have arranged their rendezvous more conveniently 
at points outside but closer to Las Vegas. Thus, the circumstances of 
their meeting seem to us to have no incriminating significance. 

It may also be noted that even if there were independent evidence 
to show Austin knew Edwards was likely to possess narcotics (and 
there is not), it would remain most doubtful that his knowing nssocin­
tion with a probable narcotics violater would justify any reasonable 
inference that Austin himself wi1s guilly of criminal misconduct. Cf. 
Sibron v. New York, 392 U.S. 40, 62 (1967). 

•our brother Thompson seems to recognize this, for his opinion is 
grounded on the concept that Austin was deemed to hnve the same 
possession as any person possessing the narcotics pursuant to his 
direction. 

-

I I 

1 • 

I l 
1 '. 
I 

"' 
Dec. 1971] Austin v. Slate 581 

bus would leave." At 6:00 p.m. that evening, Martin mel 
Austin and Edwards; "she said yes she was ready to go"; "then 
Austin told me be ready at 9 o'clock." At this point, accord­
ing to Martin, he "went home and cal!ed the ~oli_ce depart­
ment." However, what he told the police at this Juncture is 
not clear. 

As Martin's story proceeded, Austin and Edwards picked 
him up in Austin's car; Austin stopped, went ~n~o the dcsc:t, 
came back and gave Martin ten balloons contammg 20 herom 
capsules each, a total of 200 "caps," retail value $5 each, a 
total of $1,000. Then Austin drove them to Beatty,. where 
Martin last saw him "approximately 11 o'clock that mght o_n 
the 26th" when Austin gave Edwards money to purchase tllc,r 
tickets to Portland. Upon arrival there about 10:00 p.m. Sep­
tember 27, they rode around in a taxi an hour or so, then t~ok 
separate mold rooms. Thereupon, Mar~in w:nt _out to 111:d 
where the "fast action" was. (As Martm said Edwards did 
nothing after their arrival, except to hold some of the heroin 
Martin transported there, Martin's story docs not account for 
why Austin sent her along, as supposedly he did.) . 

Marlin nrst said he had no money when they arrived, then 
said he had less than $30; he stayed eight days; still, he 

, claim-~d he sold no narcotics. Instead, he said, he proceeded to 
search out addicts and give the narcotics away, leaving with 
Edwards all that he did not take with him "down on the 
street." ( Considering expenses necessarily inherent in the ven­
ture it is hard to see how Austin could profit from it, even 
Jrnd 'Martin sold everything supposedly entru.stcd to him.) . 

Martin explained he gave away the narcotics because Austm 
told him to generate business by distributing samples. He 
kept giving them away, he said, b~cause no "contact" appe~rcd 
to show him the ropes, as Aust111 supposedly had pro.m1scd. 
Yet it was apparent Martin needed no one to show htm the 
ropes; he is justifiably proud of his own expertise i_n th_e nar­
cotics tradc.3 Probably because he could not explain Ius sur­
vival in any other way, he admitted that h_e accepted_ meals and 
favors from addicts he "raised," but denied acceptmg money. 
He was communicating with the Las Vegas police, he claimed, 

•consider the following excerpt from cross-examination of Martin: 
''Q. So, you just looked over the crowd and if you saw a fellow 

you thought was an addict you just- A. If I saw one that 1 knew was 
an addict. Q. You arc deft enough that you cnn loo~ at a mnn and 
tell he is an addict? A. Well, I would say I have n. fmr knowledge of 
it. Q. You have that much knowledge of the trnITTc you can look at. a 
man and tell whether he is an addict or not, right? A. Well, I did 
that time." ·--
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but did not tell them of his own criminal activities because he 
"figured it was none of their concern." His own activities, he 
said, were not a crime if he "didn't get caught." (Inasmuch as 
Martin did not tell the police what he was actually doing in 
Portland, and Edwards concededly did not actively participate 
in Martin's criminal pursuits, what truthful information he 
could have reported to the police is something of a mystery.) 4 

According to Martin, only four days after Edwards and 
Martin arrived in Portland, Austin became disgruntled because 
Martin was not making any money there, and directed that 
Edwards should return with such narcotics as were undistrib­
uted. (Martin testified that the night before Edwards left­
which would have be~n October 1, as she had to leave Port­
land October 2, to arrive in Beatty October 3-he was with 
her when she called Austin. This testimony was at odds with 
that given at the preliminary hearing, when Martin testified he 
was present only at the time Edwards called Austin from the 
bus depot on arrival.) When Austin asked that Edwards 
return, Martin allowed her to leave with seven balloons of 

'Martin's testimony would establish that his actions, including his own 
knowingly criminal endeavors, were within the scope of the plan be 
claims to have entered into with Austin: "Q. What were your direc­
tions by Mr. Austin to do when you went up there if you were taking 
that heroin up there for him, what were your directions by him to do 
with it'l A. Just what I did with it except he told me to give out some 
samples and let the guys on the street know what I had, and then they 
would start to buy. But I never did sell any. Q. That's all the instruc­
tions you had? A. Well, except someone was suppose [sic] to contact 
me and show me the ropes, the ins and outs, and all, which never did 
happen: Q. He told you someone would contact you and show you 
all the ropes? A. Yes. Q. And nobody showed up? A. No .•.. 
Q. So, then, you went on your own to give it away? A. No, I 
wasn't giving it a.way on my own; I was giving it away because he told 
me to. Q. ilccause he told you to? A. To give out some samples, 
and that is what I was doing. Q. Does that seem reasonable, Mr. 
Martin, that he would tell you somebody would contact you up there 
and show you the ropes and then he would tell you to go out on your 
own and give it away? A. Well, I guess it seemed reasonable enough 
to me, I guess, because nobody contacted me. • • • Q. But you did 
go out and stay with addicts during the night and they bought meals 
and everything for you. And you, instead of charging them for the 
heroin, you would give it to them? A. Yes, I gave it to them. 
Q. Did you know at the time that you were furnishing heroin to those 
addicts you were violating the Oregon state law? A. Well, they didn't 
catch me at it. . . . Q. Well, that was my question. You didn't know 
it was a. violation or a felony in Oregon to give it away to anybody? 
A. (No response.) Q. Right? A. Arc you still waiting for an 
answer? I thought I answered you. No, I wasn't really too concerned 
about whether it was a viohition or not. I didn't think it was a viola­
tion if I didn't get caught at it, at least." 
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heroin ( 140 "caps"). Of the balance that he retained, he says 
he supplied one balloon (20 "caps") to the police; he "gave 
away" the contents of the other balloons ( 40 "caps") over the 
course of his stay. Martin testified he was in Edwards' motel 
room on October 2 as she finished packing, and saw her pack 
the balance of the narcotics that Martin had given her. When 
she departed, he called the bus station, ascertained when her bus 
would depart Portland and arrive in Beatty, and called the 
police in Las Vegas to tell them where Edwards had packed 
the narcotics he had given her, and where to be to arrest her 
and Austin.6 

The police apparently did not know that, in fact, Martin 
had been purveying heroin in Portland; for they obtained a 
search warrant upon an affidavit that assumed Martin was 
merely keeping Miss Edwards and the narcotics under sur­
veillance. Martin's testimony docs establish, however, that he 
was a heroin dealer, and had been well over a year before his 
alleged transaction with Austin. Some three months before 
events involved in Austin's conviction, Martin admitted, he 
was apprehended with 56 "caps" of heroin; then, to avoid 
prosecution, he undertook to incriminate others, and supplied 
or fabricated evidence on at least one other associate besides 
Austin and Edwards. From testimony of police. ollicers as well 
as Martin it is clear that in exchange for Martin's co-opcrntion 
and testimony, the police gave Martin money when he requested 
it, and refrained from prosecuting him.0 

•Martin's testimony did not explain why Austin should become dis­
gruntled over Martin's failure to make money, which is strange when 
one recalls Martin was supposedly giving away the narcotics because 
Austin told him to, and Austin never arranged the promised "contact" 
to help Martin begin to make sales. It is also interesting that while any 
police plan to capture Austin with narcotics in Nevada was necessarily 
dependent from its inception upon the narcotics being returned here, 
Martin's story attributed their return to Austin's spontaneous decision, 
and attributed that decision to Austin's self-inflicted disgruntlement 
with the venture. It is also curious that, although Martin said he saw 
where the narcotics were packed and told the police, they did not find 
them immediately when they conducted their search in Beatty. Only 
after failing to find them on the first senrch of Edwards' effects did 
they ultimately find contraband in the toe of her slipper. 

•on this point, cross-examination of M:irtin proceeded: 
"Q. How much did you have on you when they caught you? A. 

Oh, I think it was something like 56 caps, I think. Q. Of heroin? 
A. Yes. Q. Where did they catch you? A. F Street and Jackson. 
Q. Did they throw you in jail? A. Yes. Q. And then they made a 
deal with you, didn't they? A. Well, what do you mean when you 
say they made a deal? Q. Well, they made a deal with you that you 
would go free if you catch other people, tcst_ify against them and throw ·-
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The courts have long recognized not only that the uncor­
roborated testimony of an accomplice has doubtful worth, but 
that his incri111ina1ion of nnother is not corroboralcd simply 
because he accurately describes the crime or the circumstances 
thcrcof.1 Our legislature, as kgislalurcs in a multitmlc of other 
states, has codified this historic view. NRS 175.291 provides: 

"1. A conviction shall not be had on the testimony of an 
accomplice unless he is corroborated by other evidence which 
in_ itself, and without the aid of the testimony of the accom­
plice, tends to connect the defendant with the commission of 
the oITense; and the corroboration shall not be sufficient if it 
merely shows the commission of the offense or the circum­
stances thereof. 

"2. An accomplice is hereby defined as one who is liable 
to prosecution, for the identical ofTense charged against the 
defendant on trial in the cause in which the testimony of the 
accomplice is given." · 

lt is therefore apparent: first, NRS 175.291 (1) requires us 
to con.sider whether Martin has been adequately corroborated, 
assu111111g he is an "accomplice"; and, second if no "corrobo­
ration" is found, NRS 175.291 (2) rcquir~s us to decide 
whether Martin's participation in the criminal endeavor he 
attributed to Austin constituted Martin an "accomplice." We 
will consider these issues in the order stated. 

everybody else in jail to save yourself? A. They didn't say that. 
Q. Well, what, did they do with you? Do you have a case pending? 
A. No, I don t have no case pending so for as I know. Q. They 
dropped it all_ on you, didn't they? A. Well, let me answer that this 
way: They said that they would make recommendations to the District 
Judge for me. Q. Well, you have never been in front. of a District 
Judg~, l_1ave you? /\.. Pardon? Q. You have never been in front of 
a D1s!nct Judge, have you, on your own case? A. No, so far I 
haven t. Q. And they haven't go[t} a case pending against you now, 
have they? A. No, they don't have. Q. You got it all dropped didn't 
you? A. Yes." . ' 

Martin also testified: 
•~Q. Now, you have sold quite a bit of heroin in your time, haven't 

you. A. Not too much. Q. But you have sold quite a bit, haven't 
you? A. Not too much. Q. Well, what do you call too much? A 
What do you call quite a bit? Q. Well, how much have you sold? 
A. Well, I don't remember." 

•1837, Lord Abinger, c.n., in R. v. Farler, 8 C.&P. 106: "A man 
who has been guilty of a crime himself will always be able to relate 
the fa~ts of the case, and if the confirmation be only on the truth of 
t~at history, without identifying the person, that is really no corrobora­
tion at all." 

1826, nushe, C. J., and others, in R. v. Sheehan Jebb 54 57 
thought "that 'ex concesso' an accomplice was concern~d in the ~rim~ 
nnd knew all the facts ••• " -

j 
~' 

-
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[Headnote 1] 

1. Could Austin's proximity to Edwards constitute "cor­
roboration" of testimony by Martin showing that Austin knew 
she possessed narcotics, that Austin owned the narcotics, and 
that Austin tlzcrcf ore constructively possessed them tlzrour:lt 
Edwards? · 

Under statutes such as NRS 17 5 .291 it is commonly held 
that "corroborative evidence is insufficient when it merely 
casts a grave suspicion upon the accused." People v. Shaw, 
112 P.2d 241, 255 (Cal. 1941), and cases there cited; Cooper 
v. Territory, 91 P. 1032 (Okla. 1907). As the California 
Supreme Court said in People v. Shaw, supra, citing numerous 
authorities: · 

"The dilliculty comes in determining what corroboration is 
sullicient. First, we must eliminate from the case the evidence 
of the accomplice, and then examine the evidence of the 
remaining witness or witnesses with the view to ascertain if 
there be inculpatory evidence, -evidence tending to connect 
the defendant with the oITense. If there is, the accomplice is 
corroborated; if there is no inculpatory evidence, there is no 
corroboration, though the accomplice may be corroborated in 
regard lo any number of facts sworn to by him." Id., at 255; 
emphasis in original. 

This seems the approach the courts have uniformly taken to 
application of statutes like NRS 175.291; indeed, it seems the 
only approach available. How else may we implement the leg­
islative edict that there must be corroborative evidence "which 
in itself" tends to connect the defendant with the commission 
of the offense "without the aid of the testimony of the accom­
plice"? How else may we honor the legislative mandate that 
"corroboration shall not be sufficient if it merely shows the 
commission of the offense or the circumstances thereof"? 

Implicitly recognizing the propriety of the aforcdcscribed 
approach to application of NRS 17 5 .291, this court held in 
Ex parte Hutchinson, 76 Nev. 478, 357 P.2d 589 (1960), 
that an accomplice was not sufficiently corroborated, even to 
show probable cause to hold for trial, merely by showing the 
defendant was with the accomplice near the scene of the crime 
on the night it was committed, at the time the accomplice 
testified they committed it in concert.5 Similarly, as Austin's 

•A recent case similar to Ilutchi11so11 and to the one before us is 
Stnte v. Jones, 465 P.2d 719 (Ore.App. 1970). There, the court held 
testimony showing only that n burglary wns commiltcd, that the 
defondnnt had been in the store in question earlier on the same evening 
as the burglary, and that later that evening the defendant wns still in ·--
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proximity to Edwards is not independent inculpatory evidence 
connecting him to her possession of heroin, therefore if Mar­
tin's testimony establishes himself as an accomplice of Austin, 
then, as appellant's counsel contends, the evidence adduced 
against him was insufficient. This is the mandate of our legis­
lature. As this court said in another case involving the same 
statute, "if re-examination is now to be had it should ... be 
by legislative rather than judicial act." Ex parte Sullivan, 71 
Nev. 90, 93, 280 P.2d 965, 966 (1955). 

The State's only response to this is summarized in, and 
almost limited to, one sentence in its answering brief: "The 
law does not require corroboration of an informant." Thus, 
it seems fair to say that lack of ''corroboration" is conceded, 
so that Austin's conviction may not stand if Martin was an 
"accomplice" within the meaning of our legislature's mandate. 
We pass to consideration of this second issue. 

[Headnote 2] 
2. As Martin described the criminal endeavor in which he 

incriminated Austin, was Martin within the statlltory definition 
of <m "accomplice"; and, ifso, may application of NRS 175.-
291 properly be avoided, as tire minority opinion suggests, by 
saying that Martin was at the most a "feigned accomplice"? 

NRS 175.291(2) defines an "accomplice" as "one who is 
liable to prosecution, for the identical oiiense," but inasmuch 
as the statute does not specify that an "accomplice" must be 
liable to prosecution for the same offense in Nevada, a strong 
argument could be framed that Martin would be an "accom­
plice" if his testimony merely established that in concert with 
acts justifying prosecution of Austin in Nevada, Marlin ren­
dered himself liable to prosecution for possession of the same 
heroin in Oregon, or elsewhere. It is, however, unnecessary to 
decide this question, because it is clear Martin's acts were such 
as to render him subject to prosecution, together with Austin, 
on lhc same charge in Nevada. NRS 194.020(1 )(3)(5); NRS 
195.020; State v. Chapman, 6 Nev. 320 (1871); State v. 
Cushing, 61 Nev. 132, 120 P.2d 208 (1941). 

town with accomplices and others, was not sufficient corroborntion of 
uccompliccs' testimony to support defendant's conviction for the bur­
glary. In so holding, the court quoted (id., nt 720) from State v. 
Carroll, 444 P.2d 1006, 1007 (Ore. 1968): " ..• Before independent 
evidence of defendant's ns,5ociation with an admitted accomplice will 
furnish the corroboration necess~ry. it must appear that the defendant 
and the accomplice were together at a place and under circumstances 
not likely to have occurred unless there was a criminal concert between 
them." .. 

- I -· 

I\ ,, 
t 
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It is equally clear that Martin was not merely a "feigned 
accomplice" because, unlike situations concerned in the cases 
cited in the minority opinion, Martin's testimony shows une­
quivocally that he participated criminally in the activities he 
described to incriminate Austin. Indeed, Martin is the only 
person who incontestably possessed the heroin and used it 
criminally. As this court said in State v. Verganadis, 50 Nev. 
1, 248 P. 900 (1926), one of the cases to which our brother 
Thompson has referred us: 

" 'Where the voluntary cooperation in the commission of a 
crime is admitted,' says Mr. Wharton in his work on Criminal 
Evidence vol. 1 (10th ed.) sec. 440, 'the court may charge the 
jury that 'the witness is an accomplice; but where the evidence 
is conflicting as to the manner of cooperation, the question as 
to whether or not the witness is an accomplice should be sub­
nutted to the jury, under instructions as to voluntary or real 
cooperation in the commission of the offense charged.' " 50 
Nev., at 7-8. Thus, neither the Verganadis case, nor others in 
which this court has considered the subject of feigned accom­
plices, arc in point on the matter before us. Unlike the infor~1-
ant in Verganadis, whom this court said was not an accomplice 
"for the reason that there was no criminal intent on his part," 
Martin was not merely feigning participation. He was a crim­
inal with criminal intent, playing both sides, for his own pur­
poses, and not to further the ends of justice. The police obviously 
could not, and apparently did not, sanction Martin's criminal 
acts. Martin purveyed narcotics, not to aid the police, and not 
because compelled by the exigencies of the situation in which 
he found himself. About this, we believe, reasonable men can­
not dilTcr. 

It is Martin's criminal intent, not his intent to betray Austin, 
that is decisive of his status. "An accomplice is 'one culpably 
implicated in, or who unlawfully co-operates, aids, abets, or 
insists in, the commission of the crime charged.'" 2 Wharton's 
Crim. Ev. § 448 (12th ed. 1955). "The test as to whether one 
is an accomplice is whether his participation in the o!Tcnsc has 
been criminally corrupt.'' Blake v. State, 24 P.2d 362 (Okla. 
Crim.App. 1933). In Savage v. State, 170 S.W. 730 (Tex. 
Crim.App. 1914), where a witness testified the defendant 
had offered to bribe him to leave the country, and that the 
witness actually left as agreed, but with intent of betraying the 
defendant to the police, the court said: 

"It is useless for the court to assume, under the circum­
stances and statements as made by this witness, that there was 
any question or issue as to his being an accomplice. . . . •• 
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reversed. It is clear that, upon the present record, by virtue of 
NRS 175.291, there is insufficient evidence to hold appellant 
to answer for the crime with which he stands charged. Ex 
parle Hutchinson, 76 Nev. 478, 357 P.2d 589 (1960). Thus, 
the charge against appellant is hereby dismissed, and he is 
hereby discharged from custody.10 However, as we wish to 
afford the State an opportunity to prosecute appellant, in the 
event evidence to corroborate Martin is available, dismissal of 
the charge against appellant shall be without prejudice to 
institution of other criminal proceedings against him. 

While other assignments of error have been raised, it is 
unnecessary to decide them. 

ZENOFF, C. J., and BATJER, J., concur. 

THOMPSON, J., with whom MownRAY, J., agrees, dissenting: 
1. Our Constitution limits the appellate jurisdiction of 

this court in criminal cases to questions of law alone. Nev. 
Const. art 6, § 4; State v. Millain, 3 Nev. 409 (1867); State 
v. Fitch, 65 Nev. 668, 680, 200 P .2d 991 ( 1948); State v. 
Butner, 66 Nev. 127, 131, 206 P.2d 253 (1949). This com­
mand is to be obeyed, and denies our right to intrude upon the 
function of the jury to weigh, evaluate and credit the testimony 
of a witness or witnesses. The fault of the majority opinion 
lies in its acceptance of the whole of the testimony of the wit­
ness Martin as being true, and upon that premise concluding 
that he was a real as distinguished from a feigned accomplice. 
The jury was not compelled to credit all of the testimony 
given by Martin .. It was entirely free to accept a portion of 

Pray, 64 Nev. 179, 179 P.2d 449 (1947), deciding that a witness's testi­
mony showed her to be an accomplice as a matter of law and, since 
her testimony was not sufficiently corroborated, reversing a verdict 
against the defendant without allowing the State an opportunity to 
re-try him. Cf. In re Oxley and Mulvaney, 38 Nev. 379, 149 P. 992 
(1915 ), as well as Ex pa rte Hutchinson and Ex pa.rte Sullivan, supra, 
in which this court would not even allow a trial upon the uncorrobo­
rated evidence of witnesses whose testimony established them as accom­
plices. 

"'Tanya Edwards, who arrived in neatly with the heroin, was con­
victed of the offense concerned and has not appealed. She did not take 
the witness stand, either to defend herself or to accuse Austin. Austin 
testified at length, denying complicity with her and Martin. While the 
minority opinion suggests that lack of the corroboration requirl.'d by 
NRS 17 5.291 is somehow rendered less important by the fact that 
Austin denied complicity with Martin, we cannot sec how uncorrobo­
rated testimony becomes more trustworthy because it is contradicted, 
nor where there is any latitude in the statute for a distinction of such 
character. -

"" 

I 

--

588 Austin v. State [87 Nev. 

Under this witness' evidence, he went into a scheme to work 
up a case against these parties at the beginning in order lo 
get them into trouble, and that, having done so, he accepted 
the money am! railroad ticket and agreed to leave the country, 
and did start to El Paso, and later on did in another instance 
leave the country, and he testifies that appellant Savage sent 
him money to diff ercnt points in Texas, California, and Ari­
zona to keep him out of the country in the latter instance. 
Then: could be no question that Barkley was an accomplice, 
made so by his own testimony. The court should have 
instructed the jury positively that he was an accomplice." 170 
S.W., at 733. Accord: Carr v. State, 82 S.W.2d 667 (Tex. 
Crim.App. 1935). . 

We view the instant matter in much the same light. As Mar­
tin's testimony left no doubt his participation was criminally 
corrupt, the court erred in permitting the jury to determine he 
was a feigned accomplice only, and to ignore our legislature's 
requirement of corroboration. Whether the jury reached their 
verdict on this basis, or some other, Martin's testimony alone 
was insufficient to support it. 

We perceive no other way to view the matter. If the distinc­
tion between an actual accomplice and a "feigned accomplice" 
docs not depend on whether the informer participates with 
criminal intent, or merely feigns it, then on what docs the 
distinction depend'? What arc we talking about "feigning," if 
not the criminal intent? The distinction surely cannot depend 
upon whether the informer harbored, at the time of his own 
criminal acts, intent to betray supposed confederates to the 
police if it should seem expedient to do so. Nor can it turn on 
whether, before performing his own criminal acts, the informer 
took the precaution to tell the authorities of his intent to 
betray his confederates. We believe we arc concerned with 
whether Martin's criminality was feigned, not with whether his 
loyalty was. 

By NRS 175.291, our legislature has declared that one who 
has participated criminally in a given criminal venture shall be 
deemed to have such character, and such motives, that his 
testimony alone shall not rise to the dignity of proof beyond 
a reasonable doubt. To this legislative policy we must give 
meaningful effect. 0 

Accordingly, appellant's conviction must be and hereby is 

"The minority opinion suggests "the fau!L" in our reasoning is that 
we deny the jury's right to find :in informer is a "feigned accomplice" 
although his own testimony unequivocally establishes him as a real 
accomplice. This "fault" is in accord with our precedents. Cf. State v. 

M 
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his story and disbelieve the rest. People v. Davis, 309 P.2d 
1 (Cal. 1957); People v. Matlock, 336 P.2d 505 (Cal. 1959); 
People v. Bodkin, 16 Cal.Rptr. 506 (Cal.App. 1961). And, 
although the Slate may have been bound by the evidence given 
by Martin, the jury, as the trier of the facts, was not. State v. 
Fuchs, 78 Nev. 63, 368 P.2d 869 (1962). Accordingly, it 
was permissible for the jury to reject that. portion of Martin's 
testimony inculpating him with Austin, and to accept, as true, 
other testimony offered by him. Martin's implication of Austin 
was, by Austin, denied. The evidence was in direct conflict as 
to Austin's involvement. It was the jury's task to resolve that 
conflict under proper instructions from the court. 

2. Of course it is true that the testimony of a real accom­
plice must be corroborated in order to justify a conviction. 
NRS 175.291. It is equally true, however, that the testimony 
of one who is a feigned accomplice need not be corroborated, 
and if believed in relevant part, will support a conviction. State 
v. Vcrganadis, 50 Nev. 1, 7, 248 P. 900 (1926); State v. 
Smith, 33 Nev. 438, 447, 117 P. 19 (1910); sec also Ex 
parte Colton, 72 Nev. 83, 87, 295 P.2d 383 (1956); Tellis v. 
State, 84 Nev. 587°, 445 P.2d 938 (1968). Whether the wit­
ness is a real or a feigned accomplice is a jury question to 
be resolved under appropriate instructions, State v. Verganadis, 
supra, and the finding of the jury is conclusive, Smith v. State, 
supra. This is particularly true when the evidence is in con-
flict. Appropriate instructions were given in this case. · 

3. Martin testified that he had alerted the police that 
Austin and Tanya Edwards were to meet in Beatty, Nevada, 
on a certain day and that Tanya would have the narcotics in 
her possession. Moreover, his testimony, if believed, estab­
lished that the narcotics originally belonged to Austin and 
were being redelivered to him by Tanya. Austin did meet 
Tanya in Beatty on that day and she did have tl1e narcotics 
in her possession. In short, the events which transpired gave 
credit to that aspect of Martin's testimony and, as to that 
aspect, it was permissible for the jury to believe that Martin 
was a feigned accomplice who voluntarily cooperated with law 
enforcement to aid justice by detecting a crime. 

4. Austin contends that the State failed to prove his pos­
session of the narcotics. He had driven to Beatty to meet Tanya 
who had the narcotics in her handbag. As they started to 
drive away in Austin's automobile the police intervened, exhib­
ited a search warrant, searched the car and the handbag, 
found the narcotics, and placed Austin and Tanya under arrest. 

-
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Austin was never observed physically to have taken the hand-
bag into personal custody. However, if the narcotics were ~ 
Austin's, as Martin testified, Austin would be deemed to ha_vc 
the same possession as any person p~ssessing t_he narcotics ti 
pursuant to his direction, since he retamed_ the right to exer- ~ 
cise dominion and control. People v. White, 325 P.2d 985 
(Cal. 1958). . 

5. The jury's verdict in this case should be ~ust~ined. We 
have no business setting aside factual determrnat1ons. The 
majority opinion pa}nts the witn_css Marti? as a rascal and 
then accepts his testimony as entirely true m order to rule as 
a matter of law that he was a real accomplice as to all phases 
of the transacti~n whether in Oregon or Nevada. The jury was 
not obli"ed to so treat his testimony. It could sift, evaluate, 
accept s~mc of it and reject the balance. The jury apparently 
accepted Martin's advice to the police th~t a crime w?ul~ 
occur in Beatty because it did happen precisely as he said 1t 
would. I find no legal error in that decision. 

ANTHONY FOX, APPELLANT, v. THE STATE OF 
NEVADA, RESPONDENT. 

No. 6434 
December 8, 1971 491 P.2d 721 

Appeal from judgment of Eighth Judicial District Court, 
Clark County; Clarence Sundean, Judge. 

Defendant was convicted in the district court of selling nar~ 
colics, and he appealed. The Supreme Court, BAT~ER, J., h~ld 
that where witness' affirmative answer to prosecution question 
as to whether witness had ever made a purchase of heroin 
before from defendant was admitted for limited purpose of 
showing defendant's knowledge of nar~otic natm:e of substa~ce 
sold, such testimony was properly received by trial court which 
instructed jury as to limited purpose of testimony. 

Affirmed. 

Robert G. Legakes, Public Defender, and Jerrold J. Court­
ney, Deputy Public Defender, Clark County, for Appelfont. 

Robert List, Attorney General, and Roy A. Woofter, District 
Attorney, Clark County, for Respondent. 
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Argument for Appcllnnt 

STATE t'. SEYMOUR 
No. 3133 

)lnr 7, lO~G. r.7 P. (2cl) ll!JO, 

1, ]:\'C'F.ST, 

'l\•stimonr of f)l'OSCl'III l'IX, llll ll(•Colllplic(', 1tcl1l s11fllclc11tly 
c:onol1oratl'd to 1mst11fn conviction for incest (Comp. Laws, 
~ec. 1007S). 

!.!. Cm1111x AI, LA w. 
E,·l11l•nN• lhat nrcm;ccl committed net of incest in county of 

J\1'111'Pl'lltio11 ltclcl snllki('nt to snstn ln l'Onrktlon therefor. 

;{, ]Nt'F:ST. 

• \('co111pll1•t• Is s11lllcl<'111ly cor1·ohol'lltcd to snstnln couy!ctlon 
for lnc1•st, whcr1• C'lrc11111stmiet•>1 in C'rlll1•111•e from Kuurccs otht•r 
th:m a1·C'o111pllte's lcstinwnr 1<•1111 1111 tho wlwln to couuect 
:1n~11~1•d with erimc chargl'<l (Comp. Lnws, i<l'C, 10!)78), 

4. l'nnlINAl, LAW. 

\\'1•i~lil. of p\•Jflp111•1• w11s for jurr. 

ij, Cunu:-1,\T, T.AW. 
]11 llll'C:S( proSl'l'lltlon, Jll'OSl'C'III rlx' tl'sll111011y ns to nets of 

!<t•xnal lulC'rcuu1·sc with nccused before nml nrter date of net 
l'h:ir~Nl held a<lmfi;sfble ns tcll(llll~ to show relation nnd lnccst-
11011s 11ir-;posil ion of 1wensP<I m11l pros('1•11trlx. 

APPEAL from Second Judicial District Court, Washoe 
County; Thomas F. Moran, Judge. 

Arthur B. Seymour was convicted of incest, and he 
appeals. Affirmed. 

John W. Burrows, for Appellant: 
The verdict of the jury in the above-entitled case was 

contrary to the law as defined in the instructions given 
the jury by. the court; and the verdict of the jury so 
rendered was contrary to the evidence presented in the 
case, and said evidence was insufficient to sustain such 
verdict. There was nothing to prove that the adultry 
was not committed in California, nnd if so, the courts 
of Nevada had no jurisdiction in the case. Ruth Sey­
mour was a self-confessed accomplice, and it is the law 
of this state that no person can be convicted on the 
uncorroborated testimony of such an accomplice. 'l'here 
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.\r;,n1111c11t fol' the Sln tl• 
--------- ----------------

was no one else who says that there was an act of inter­
course committed in Nevada. Gertrude Seymour testi­
fied that she knew of the trip to Sacramento, Californi~ 
Ruth Seymour testil'icd that they went to Sacramenti)­
Arthur Seymour, who did not deny the paternity, saiN 
"We committed adultery in Sacramento"; Frank Se~ 
rnour who was in the car at the time, was not put on 
the stand; 2GG days from September 9, 1934, the time 
they were at Sacramento, to June 1, 1935, is a normal 
time for the birth of a full-term baby; Gertrude Sey­
moui· said that the bully wus a strong, normal bal>y . 
There was no corroboration of Ruth Seymour's testi­
mony that the conception of the baby was not the 
happening of the events at Sacramento, California. 

It is not suflicient corroboration merely to show gen­
erally that the defendant was an associate of the accom­
plice. Peo. v. l<ocning, fl!) Cal. 574, 3-1 P. 238; Peo. v 
Larsen, 4 Cal. Uurep. Cas. 28G, 34 P. 514; Pco. v. But­
ler, 71 N. Y. S. 12!); Smith v. State (Tex. App.), 38 
S. W. 200; State v. Lay, 88 Utah lt13, 110 P. 28G; Pco. 
v. l\Iorton, 139 Cal. 139, 73 P. G09. 

Gray Mashburn, .Attorney-General; W. T. Mathews 
and W. Iiowu.,rd Gray, Deputy Attorneys-General; ancl 
E1'1iest S. fl1·own, District Attorney, for the State: 

Where one act of incestuous intercourse is elected for 
prosecution, testimony of either prior or subseque1~t 
acts is admissible as evidence of an incestuous disposi­
tion, and as corroboration of the testimony as to the 
one act. People v. Koller (Cal.), 7G P. GOO. 

The conoboration necessary and required by section 
10!)78 N. C. L. is simply sufficient corroboration which 
tends to connect the defendant with the crime. State v. 
Streeter, 20 Nev. 403, 22 P. 758; 31 C. J. 388. Ruth 
Seymour, the prosecutrix, testified definitely to the place 
and time and to the crime charged in the information. 
Her mother testified that the defendant himself had 
confessed that the girl's pregnancy was due to his 
fault. The mother further testified that she had noticed .. 

( 
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011lnlon ot the Courl-Dn<·kcr, C. J. 

the affectionate attitude on the part of the defendant 
toward her daughter from the period commencing with 
June 1934 until February 1935. Furthermore, the 
ddendant himself admitted on examination that he 
hncl had sexual intercourse at least on one occasion 
with Ruth Seymour, and that he constantly kept com­
pany with her from June 1934 until February 1935, 
und that he had seen her nearly every day; that he had 
spent a night in a hotel in Reno, Washoe County, 
Nevada, with her; that he had engaged in "petting 
parties" frequently with her j had addressed her aff ec­
tionntely. He testified positively that he loved the girl, 
that he wanted to marry her, that he intended to marry 
her when he had secured his divorce from his wife. 
We believe, from the opinion in the case of State v. 
Streeter, supra, that under this evidence it was entirely 
fur the jury to decide as to its weight. 

OPINION 

P,y the Court, DUCKER, C. J.: 
The defendant, Arthur B. Seymour, was convicted of 

the crime of incest. · He has appealed from the judg­
ment and the order denying his motion for a new trial. 

It is alleged in the information that the offense was 
committed in the county of Washoe, State of Nevada, 
lJll or about October 1, 1934. The mother of the female 
with whom the defendant is alleged to have committed 
the crime instituted the prosecution, but for conven­
hrncc we will refer to the daughter as the prosecutrix. 

1-3. Defendant insists that the evidence in insuffi­
cient to justify the verdict, and that the verdict is , 
contrary to the evidence, in this, that the evidence fails 
to show that he committed an offense of incest in 
\\'ashoe County, Nevada. He contends also that there 
Is not sufficient corroboration of the testimony of the 
prosecutrix, an accomplice. The following facts were 

-
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prc:-wnted in evidence: Defendant an<l pro::1ccu r1x arc {'ill 
related as first cousins. 'fhe latter was eighteen years N 
of age on the l'ormcr's trial in July 193G. She had lived ~ 
with her parents in sai<l city of Sparks all of her life 
and was never married. Def end ant has also lived in 
that city for a number of years. His parents separated 
when he was quite young and thereafter he lived nt 
different times with his mother, father, and grand­
mother. He lived for a while at the home of the prose­
cutrix. Defendant was married in April 1928. He and 
his wife separated in April 1934, and she left Sparks 
and went to Oakland, Calif., taking their young daugh­
ter with her. The separation was caused by defendant's 
attentions to the prosecutrix. The latter testified that 
between June 1, 1934, and February 15, 193G, she saw 
defendant quite often in the city of Sparks, county of 
·washoe, State of Nevada. He came to her home fre­
quently and they were much together within that 
period. She testified that she had sexual intercourse 
with him during that time about twice a week, all of 
which occurred in said city of Sparks. They had such 
intercourse on one occasion on or about October 1, 1934, 
in that city at a place where defendant was living, 
known as the Deer Park Grocery Store. She continued 
having these relations with him in Sparks until about 
February 15, 1935, when her mother, who became aware 
of her pregnancy, took her to a hospital in Oakland, 
Calif., where she gave birth to a child on June 1, 1935. 
Defendant is the father of that chil<l. 

The testimony of the prosecutrix summarized above, 
together with other evidence, reveals enough of the 
legal evidence adduced to support the verdict and judg­
ment. 

The mother of the prosecutrix was a witness for the 
state. She testified that she had been residing with her 
husband in the city of Sparks for a number of years. 
She testified that prosecutrix was their daughter, and 
defendant's father was a brother of her husband. The 
witness had known defendant for a long time and knew 

-
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thnt he was n mnrriecl mnn during the yenr 1934. He 
became unduly attentive to her daughter and this was 
mo1·0 apparent uflcr witness returned from Lake Tahoe 
to her home in Sparks on September 14, 1934. She 
testified that he was in her company frequently; 
"addressed her as sweetie, and all those affectionate 
words that lovers use." This unusual conduct between 
cousins caused the witness to admonish defendant to 
cease visiting her daughter. He resented her interfer­
ence and did not discontinue his attentions. She saw 
defendant in company with her daughter quite often 
after that. Whenever the daughter went to school, he 
would accompany her. In February 1935, witness went 
to the school and found them near there is an automo-

. bile. At this time they admitted to her that prosecutrix 
was pregnant, and defendant confessed to her that he 
was the cause of it. He said he would marry prosecu­
trix after he got a divorce. The witness then took her 
daughter to a hospital in Oakland, Calif., where she 
gave birth to a child on June 1, 1935, as al~o testified 
to by the daughter. 

But evidence of defendant's intimacy with the prose­
cutrix on or about the date alleged in the information 
is also supplied by the defendant himself. He was a 
witness in his own behalf. In his testimony he admitted 
that .he was the father of the child, and his knowledge 
of his relation with prosecutrix as her cousin. After 
he took his wife to San Francisco on April 27, 1934, 
he commenced keeping company with prosecutrix. He 
commenced to love her in 193i and loved her ever after­
wards. 

He admitted having sexual intercourse with her in 
Sacramento, Calif., in September 1934. Later in that 
year he took her to a hotel in Reno where he engaged a 
room and sigrn~d the hotel register as husband and wife. 
They remained in that room nll night nnd he sought to 
i:elieve her of pregnancy by having her drink a quantity 
of gin. 

'l'he testimony of the mother and defendant does not 
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disclose any one circumstance tending directly to cor­
roborate the testimony of the prosecutrix, it is true, but 
this is unnecessary. If circumstances in evidence from 
sources other than the testimony of the accomplice tend 
on the whole to connect the accused with the crime 
charged, it is enough. State v. Streeter, 20 Nev. 403, 
22 P. 758; 31 C. J. 388, and cases cited in note 55 sup­
porting the text. The testimony of the mother and the 
defendant shows a conjunction of opportunity and inti­
macy extending over a period of time, both before and 
after the act charged. Thh:; led, as appears by his 
admission, to an act of i:;exual intercourse shortly prior 
to the time specified in the information. Not long after 
that time, as likewise appenrs from his admission, fol­
lowed the clandestine association as husband and wife 
in the room of the hotel in Reno. These circumstances 
are of sufficient probative force to satisfy the statute as 
to the corroboration of an accomplice. Collectively, they 
tend to connect the defendant with the commission of 
the offense. Section 10078 N. C. L. 

4. The weight of the evidence was for the jury. 
The prosecutrix was also corroborated by the testimony 
of the mother and defendant as to the other sexual acts. 

5. It was objected by the defendant that the testi­
mony of prosecutrix as to such other acts with defend­
ant was inadmissible. We are not of that opjnion. 
Those acts occurring, as she testified, about twice a 
week, commencing around the 1st of June 1034, and 
continuing until February of the following year, tended 
to show the relation and incestuous disposition of the 
parties, which had a probative bearing upon the proba­
bility of the crime having been committed as charged. 
Prior acts of sexual intercourse are admissible in this 
class of cases, according to the great weight of author­
ity. People v. Stratton, 141 Cal. 604, 75 P. 166; Lipham 
v. State, 125 Ga. G2, 53 S. E. 817, 114 Am. St. Rep. 
181, 5 Ann. Cas. 66; State v. Pruitt, 202 Mo. 49, 10.0 
S. W. 431, 10 Ann. Cas. 654; Thayer v. Thayer, 101 
Mass. 111, 100 Am. Dec. 110; State v. Wallen, 123 
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Minn. 128, 143 N. W. 119; People v. Skutt, 96 Mich. 
449, 56 N. W. 11; 16 C. J. p. 602; 14 R. C. L. p. 38; 
Wigmore on Evidence (2d ed.) ~ec. 398. Subsequent 
acts are within the rule. Thayer v. 'l'hayer, supra; 
Lawson v. State, 20 Ala. 65, 56 Am. Dec. 182; State v. 
Witham, 72 Me. 531; Burnett v. State, 32 Tex. Cr. R. 
86, 22 S. W. 47; State v. Bridgman, 49 Vt. 202, 24 Am. 
Rep. 124; State v. Reineke, 89 Ohio St. 390, 106 N. E. 
52, L. R. A. 1915A, 138; People v. Koller, 142 Cal. 621, 
76 P. 500; Wigmore on Evidence, sec. 398; Bishop on 
Statutory Crimes, sec. 682. Especially are such acts 
admissible when, as here, they are connected with ante­
rior acts, thus showing a continuousness of illicit 
relations. 

We have considered all other claims of error made by 
def endnnt and find them to be without merit. 

The judgment and order denying the motion for a 
new trial should be affirmed. 

It is so ordered. 

LYON COUNTY BANK ET AL. v. LYON COUNTY 
BANK ET AL. 

,Jnne 10, l!l3G. r,~ l',(:!<l) 803. 

1. l'A1rrn:s. 
Sl'ntulorr g-romul of 1k11111rrer !lint pl11inllll' has not lt>gal 

c:qiad(y I'll 1-me ltdtl lo l'l'fl'I' to JH'l'SOIIS who ('IIIIIHlt t<IIC l'Xl'Pfll: 

h,I' g'llll r1ll1111s, IWXL frJp11tls, ('Ulllllli( IN•s, or, 111 l'IISl' or lllll l'l'h•tl 
wuuien, hy joluing theil' hushauds in certnl11 cases (Comp. 
Laws, sec. 81iOG). 

:.! • .\CTJO:-f, 

In 1wllo11 hy hank 1H1 trustee of rnllroa<l to reco\'l'l' trnst 
fmHI In hunk nt t-hn<.> bunk Wll!-l tukeu O\'C'l' hy hank cx11111hwr, 
eo11111l11l11t ltcl1l uot tlC'llllll'l'llble on gronu<l thnt J1l11lntlff wns 
wllhout ll'g'lll Cllllll<'itY to l-111(', In thnt 1.llllllt' per>1ol1 couhl uot 
coutl'ol both prosccntlou 1111<1 tlefeuse of nl'tlou (Comp. Laws, 
set'li. 747 ct seq., 81:iOG). 

Co111plal11t nll<•gecl thnt snit w1111 hroug-ht for u<.>11c-
1Jt of ho1ulhollle1'li of rnllrontl of whil'h b,111!;: wns 
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Oct. lSS!>.] STATF. v. STnEETEn. 403 

Points dccitlcd. 
---------·---------------------
Tho goncrnl design of tho stntuto is, ns counsel clnims, to confer 
the light of selecting their own school officers upon the pooplo 
of ench scbool-clistrict. But ovon if no good 1·cnson could be 
nssigned why this design is not mo1·e fully cnrriod out, so thnt 
ench district would hnvo nn election entirely separnte from nny 
portion of nny other district, it would not be the duty of tho 
comt to nRsmno lcgislntivo power, nncl extend tho clenrly 
oxprc::;sed pro,-isions of tho stntute to embrace such cnses. A 
consiclcrntiou of the statute however lends to the conclusion 
thnt the legislature intended whnt the stutute exp1·esses. It 
must be supposed thnt tho legislature unclorstood thut the 
boundary lines of election precincts and school-districts tlo not 
noccR;:;arily coincide. And in order to meet this com1ition tho 
lnw provides tbnt, whore two or moro sclwol-<listricts nro within 
tho same election precinct, Repnrnto elections mny bo held. 
l!'rom this wo nssumo thnt tho lcgislnture, bnving in Yiow the 
gcnornl purpose of tho stntute, considered it inexpetlieut to 
inflexibly enforce it, nnd thnt tho pmposc o! tho stututo would 
be snflicicntly uccomplishcil by holding :;cpnrnto elections in 
the clnss of cnRes provitlCll for, when tho nocessity is more 
npp:wcnt thnn in cases whc1·0 thoro iii simply nn ovol'lnpping of 
election precinct nnc1 school-clhitrict Hues. 

It is ordered thnt the npplicnliou for tho writ of quo war,·anto 
be denied. · 

[No. l:J08.) 

'l'HB STATE OF NEVADA, REsPoNntNT, v. s. M. S'rREETER, 
APPELLANT. 

CHDIIN,\I, r,Aw-Co111cono11.,-r1uN 01•' AcCO)ll'l,l~B-NV!lll•:Ntm.-'l'ho 
cvi<ll'111,o lo l'orrol>orato tho tci1tl111ony or 1111 nccon1pllcc, as required 
by s,wtion ar.·, of tho cri111l1111l pnwtico nd {(fo11. Stnt. -1~•1:i) ls imlllclont 
if it tm1ds to "m111ud tho uoJ'o11da11t with tho co111111lsslo11 or lho of• 
r,•11so. 

Tn1rn-lNc1•~s-r.-'l'ho tf'sti111011y in Uils mso rovlowe<l: lft:ld, ,mfliclcnt 
lo ,·oiTol>omto Urn k1ill111011y or tho p1°olitli.,11ting wilnolis in u cuso of 
hw,,Ht. (Seo opinion.) 

·1n1rn-H 1•:AsoN:1.111,N Do1111·r.-Tho lnstrnoUous In thil'I CU80 upon tho 1mb­
j•.:1•t of l'o:1;;011:1lolo tloulot woro lllcnlionl with tholio glvon In 8tu.lc v, 
i'oll,1, ttnlc, Ullll 1m1110 l'Uling IIJ)J)lie1I. 

4(H STA'l'E v. STnEETEn. [Sup. Ct. 

.Argument for Appellant. 

Jn1rn-"'1m111'l' TO 111•: (l l\'J•:N TO D1•:lo'BNDA:'l'l'')I •r1,:STJ~roNY-IXHTllUC• 
~·10;,;1,1,-'l'ho <'ourt <lhl not CIT in instrncting tho jnry th11t in consldcr­
i11g tho weight and offed to lH) gi ,·en to tho tlc!'emlnnt's cvidcnco tho 
jury should, in :uhlitio11 to notidng his 111:111ncr nllll tho prohability 
of his stntc111c11ts t:ikcm !11 co11ncction with tho cvi<lcnco in tho cn.~c, 
"corniidcr his relation and '4itnation 11n1lcr whioh ho give~ hili tc~ti­
rnony, tho co118C1Jncnccs to hi111 relating from tho rosult of thiR trial, 
uu<l nil I.ho i11J11,·0111ents mul te111ptntion.'I which wo11lcl onlinarily 
inil1101H'O a person in his sit11:ition; you ><houhl c•:u·ef11lly dotcrmino 
ihc amount of crcclibility to whieh tho evidence is cntitlctl; if con­
vi11dnt,: atlll can·yiug with it ,i belief in itli Lrnth, net 11po11 it, if not 
you ltavo a l'il{ht to n•jcet it." 

OUJ1,:v-r10Ns •1·0 (tm,;s•rroN:.-\V1mN bDIA'l'lW!Al,.-OIJjcctions to qUOR• 

lion,; asked:\ witnc'sR, 11ml rnlc<l ont by the "ourt, licco111c hnm:\torial, 
and will not iJo considere<l in tho apJwllato c,ourt, whc1·0 it nffirnrn­
tivcly appe1u·:; that the wit11c"'~ wm1 afton,·anl,1 :.illowc,l to I\Il8\l'Cr 

qn,•slio11s of Lite s:11110 i111port. 

Ar1•EAL from the Dit!lrict Court of the State of Novuclu, Elko 
County. 

R R BIGELOW, District Judge. 

Tile facts suflicicntly npponr in tho opinion nncl bend notes. 

J. TV. Dm·scy, uncl J. A. Plnmmcr, for Appellant. 

I. 'rhe testimony in this cnso introduced ns corroborative of 
the testimony of the prosccnliug witness, is wholly insuflicient 
to connect tho defendant with tho commission of tho offorlf!o. 
(Tcstimo11y l'OYiewctl,) 

'l'ho necesxity of corroborntion, n.ncl tho character nll(l extent 
· of such corrohorntory ovi,leuco, is tho i:;ubjoct of stntntory lnw 
in this state. (Gen. Stnt. 42,Hi.) · 'l'ho law goes to tho foll ex­
tent of l'C<Iuiring the corrohomtory ovidenc:c of ib;olf, null with­
out reference to tho testimony of tho accomplice, to connect tho 
dcfc11dnnt with the comrniHsion of the offense-tho very thing 
for doing which the prisoner i,ta1Hls iutliclCll. Corroborntion 
ns to time, place, nn<l circumstances of tho trnnsnction is insuffi­
cient. (Ultildasv. Stali:, fi2 Ga. 10G; 1Jam11uu.:I~ v. Slate, 52 Gn. 
307; ,ll-icldldon v. Slate, 62 Gn. 527 .) 

II. 'l'bo stntnto upplics uot only to nccompliccs, in n techni­
cal sense, but to nll witnesses who wore zmriiceps criminis, 
whothcr us principals or n.ccossories. Tho term nccomplico is 
not, usocl in tho restricted or toclmicnl souse. ( Ervin v. Stale, 
1 'rox. App. 301; Kelly v. State, 1 Tex. App. G21>; lloach v. Slate, 
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4 'l'cx. App. 4G; Hamilton v. State, 9 S. W. Rep. 088; Davis v. 
State, 2 Tex. App. 588; Boyd v. State, 24 T-0x. App. 570.) 

III. 'l'he court erred in giving the instruction in relation to 
tho weight und effect to be given the evidenco of the dofeudnnt. 
(Hartford v. State, 9G Ind. 4Gl; Prall v. Stale, 56 Ind. 179; 
Greer v. Stale, 53 Ind. 420; Unruh v. Stale, 105 Ind. 123; Bird 
v. State, 107 Ind. 154.) The imperntivo instrnction of tho court 
was n direct iim.1sio11 of the p1·ovinco of the jury. 

IV. The court erred in sustaining objections to the following 
questions, nskcd upon the cross exnminution of Ida Gnrduer: 
(1) "Did your husband write to you nnd toHyou thnt he wanted 
you to stnuc1 in nnd help to cinch the old mnn-1·efening to Mr. 
Streeter, your father?" (2) "You 111·0 now testifyin_g on this 
stnncl, nud you have np1l0nre<l ns n witnes11, hnvon't you, becnuse, 
und only becnuse, you have been told to do it by your husband?" 
(Stale v. Cooper, 83 Mo. GOS; 1 Whar. Ev. See's 408,544,547, 
540, 5Gl; 1 Greon Ev. 450; Stale v. Reeves, 10 S. W. It. 84G.) 

John P. Alcxande1·, Attorney-Geneml, for Respondent. 

I. The cnses cited by nppellnnt hnve no npplicntion to this 
cnso. 

IL 'rho proponclornncc of nuthority in this country is thnt 
a jlll'y mny convict ti prisoner on the testimony of nn nccom­
plico nlouo, though the court mny, nt its <liscrotion, udvise them 
to ncquit, unlci;s such testimony is conoborute<l ou mnteriu.l 
points. (1 Whar. C1·im. Lnw, 783; Pcoz;lc v. Gibson, G3 Cul. 
GOl; Joh11so1l v. State, G5 Iud. 2G!>; Ulmer v. Slate, 14 Ind. G2; 
Stale v. JVarl, 51 Iown, 587; People v. Rolfe, Gl Cnl. 541; People 
v. Oochran, Gl Cul. G49; State v. Chapman, G Nev. 320; Hlale v. 
Lambert,\) Nov. 321; Hamilton v. People, 29 l\lich. 178; Lindsay 
v. People, G3 N. Y. 143.) 

l3y the Court, 1\IuRPIIY, J.: 

Tho nppclla.nt wns convicted of incest. It is claimed thnt tho 
cYi<lenco is immfficient .to support tho verdict of the jury, in this: 
thnt tho testimony of tho prosecuting witness is unconoboruted, 
n1Hl thnt, therefore, n conviction wns im1l1'oporly hnd, relying 
upon the stntuto1-y provision. Section 4245, Gen. Stnt. Nev, 
rends; "A conviction cannot bo hud upon tho tcstimouy of nn 
accomplice, unless ho be corrobornted by such other evidence 
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ns shnll tou<l to connect tho dc!cnclnnt with tho commission of 
the offense; nntl the corroborntiou f:!hnll not bo sulliciont if it 
merely shows tho commission of the offense, or the circum­
stnnces thereof." 

Upon nn examination of the transcript, it uppcnrs the1·efrom 
that thcro wns some ovidenee tornling to corrobornte tho nccom­
plico. Dcfcntlnnt wns iu tho habit of tnking tho prosecuting 
witness with him to the River ranch, nnd there remaining over 
night, nnd on one occnsion they occupied the snmo bctl, in tho 
presence of tho witnesses, Neely nml Dnkin. He admits these 
facts. He nlso nclmits tho fact thnt his attention was callecl to 
the contlitiou of his <laughter , and thnt he took her to San 
li'runcisco nnd placed her in St. Mnry's hospitnl, where she 
gnvo birth to n chilcl, after which ho sent her to Iown by the 
southern route . Sho wus brought from Iowa by the sheriff of 
Elko county. While sho wns nt tho hospital nwaiting confine­
ment, sho wroto to her sif!tcr, in this sl:l.to, charging- thnt their 
fathc1· wns the one who hnd committed the crimo. Publicity 
nppenrs to hnvc beeu given to the nccusation, nud, severul 
months before the finding of tho inclictmcut, person,i acting iu 
bchnlf of the clefenclant persnaclocl her to mnko nn nffidnvit, 
fully clenyiug tho chnrgo, nnd also to copy nnd si'gn n letter to 
the same effect, drnwn in tho interest of defcntlant, antl ncl­
drcsseJ to this snme sister who wns prcRcnt at the time of 
writiug n1Hl signing- tho letter. It rnny bo 1mid of thi11 circum­
stnnce, ns well ns ouch of the others, thnt it does not of itself no­
CCHflarily ten<l to establish guilt, and it is ti-no thnt 1111 inno­
cent fntber might hnvo clone any of these things; but tnkon ns 
n whole, these circumstnnccs form n combination tcmling to 
connect Jefenclnut with tho commission of the offense. Th, 
court imitrncted the jury thnt n conviction conhl not be had 
upon the testimony- of nn nccomplico nloue, without corrobora­
tion. All that the stntutc 1·cqnircfl is . tbnt tho cfrcumst1mccs 
shonlcl bo such ns to convince tho jmy; such ns to inc.lncc them 
to l>clic\'O that the nccomplico luHl swom truly nml thnt the 
chnrge was true. If the jm·y nrc sntisfictl with tho woig-1.it of 
the conohomtin:; ciro11111Rlluwos, it is enough. 'l'ho jury 111ay 
clisregnrd the testimony of nn nccomplice, or of nny other witness 
who 1ulmitR thnt ho hn::1 provionsly 111n1lo other und 1liffcro11t 
stntemcuts, 01· hns Hworn to n diffe1·c11t atnto of facts from thnt 
which ho testifies to on tho wib,css stnnd, yot thov ro ot 
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bonnd to clo so. 'l'hoy mny give to tho testimony ol tho wit­
nesses such. crodit ns, in view or nll tho circurustnncos, includ­
ing nny corroborating testimony thnt runy hnvo boon introduced, 
they wny doom it entitled to. . · 

Mr. Justice Whitman, in tho case of St.ate v. Chapman, 6 
Nev. 325, snid: "How much tho weight oI this ovidonco 
runy bo is not for this court to decide. It is evi<lonco tend­
ing to n statutory corroborntion, considcrec1 by the jury suf­
ficient." In tho cnso of People v. Cloonan, GO Cnl. 4GO, the 
co\ll't snid: · "It is sufficient, if it tends to connect tho dofond­
nnt with tho commission of the offonso." 'l'o tho snmo ofi'oct 
uro the cnsos of People v. Townsley, 30 Cnl. 405;" People v. 
Clough, 73 Cnl. 351; 15 Puc. Rep. 5. In the cuse of State v. 
:Miller, 65 Iowu, G3, 21 N. W. Rep. tho court said: "But it is 
for the jury to weigh nn<l detennine tho effect of such evidence 
nrnl its snfficioncy; anc1 ouch cnuso must be determined upon its 
own fnctH, bccnuso, in tho nnt"itro of thfoga, tho corroborution 
cnunot be tho snmo in nny two cases." In New York, whore 
they hnvo n stutute similnr to ours, all thut is required is some 
other eviclonco fnirly tending to connect tho defenc.lnnt with the 
commission or tho cl'ime chnrged, so thut tho conviction will 
not rest entirely upon the evidonco of tho accomplice. The 
question us to whether the evidence is sufficient COl'l'oborntion 
is for the dotorminntion of tho jury. (People v. Ogle, 104 N. Y. 
513; 11 N. E. Rep. 53; People v. Rrc,•Tut1·dt, 10-1 N. Y. 694; 11 
N. E. Ilop. G2; People v. Bllioll, 106 N. Y. 292; 12 N. E. Hep. 
G02.) In tho cnso of llobel'ls v. Stale, 55 Gn. 221, tho coul't 
sni<l: "If they, (moaning tho jury), found ho wns an nccom­
plico, still there is, in our juclgmont, sufficient cvideuco to cor­
roborate the witness. He (the <lefendnnt) hucl nccess to the 
store of Jnck, <lolivorou coko. * * * At nll ovouts, tho two 
questions, whether he. was nn uccomplice, nnd, if so, whether 
ho wns supported by other evi1lonco, were fairly submitted to 
tho jury; nnd if they found, oithor that ho wns not nn 11ccom­
plico1 or thut ho wns supporto<l, if nn uccomplico, tho verdict is 
sustnincd. * * * 'l'bey might hnvo found tho lnttcr, for 
there nro circ11111HtnncoH, though Rlight, to11<li11g to corrobornto 
l!'nin's evidence." Tho cnso of Hammack v. Slatt1, 52 Gu. 402, 
cited by nppollnnt, sustnius tho views herein ox1n·os1Jo<l. In 
Ohilders v. Slate, Id. IOG, nnd the caso of Jlliddlclo11 v. State, 
I<l. 527, there was neither testimony nor cii-cumstancos 
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to connect the pnrtios with tho conimiflRion of tho of­
fenses but tho contrnry. In tho Childers case tho mother 
testified thnt he was nt homo nud in bed nt tho very time 
thut tho robbery wns suid to huve been corumittod. None 
of tho other clefondnnts attempted to implicate Uhiltlcrs, except 
Loo. In tho "Mill1lloton cnso there ·wns not n circumHtauco to 
councct him with tho murder, except the statement of 'l'hm·m:rn, 
uncon·obornted. In the caso of Bell v. State, 73 Gn. 572, tho 
court snid: "While n conviction cannot be hnd upon tho 
uuconobornted ovidenco of nn nccomplico, * * * yet it is 
impmcticnblo to lny down nny rule ns to tho precise amount of 

'evidence which is requisite to sustain tho nccomplice's nccouut, 
* * * fnrthor thna that there must be other cvitlcnco :mfllciont 
to sntisfy tho jmy of the fnct." 

'l'ho statements of 1111 necornplico sliouhl bo rccoivctl wiLh great 
cn11!.io11, nml tho court, nH tho cu11rt tlitl i11 Lhi8 case, i;houltl al waJli 
so nd vise; yet if tho testimony of tho nccomplico obt11ius full cre1lit 
with tho jury, nnd they nro fully convinced of its trnth, nny fact or 
eircumstnnco which tends to corrobomto is n<lmissil>lo, and 
complies with tho stntuto. Tho cnso nuder considerntion 
is much stronger tlinn sovernl of tho ubove-mcntioncd cases 
in which convictions wore bud. 'l'ho uncoutrndictctl tes­
timony shows thnt there wns but ono bed ut tho River ranch dur­
ing tho time thnt this cohubitntion is nlleged to huve token pluco; 
thnt one night, at least, fnther and clnughtur occupied tho same 
bocl. The uight in c1uci;lion Neely nll(l Dakin cmuo to tho 
ranch. Asked pcrmiHsiou to romuin over night. The dcfoucl­
ant spoke to the dnughter nnd snid, "Well, l\Iaucl, I guess we 
cun spnro them the buffalo robes;" und I\Inucl unswol'ccl, "Yes." 
Tho bed for the travelers wns made on the floor of tho c,tbin, 
aud consisted of n horse blanket, buifolo robe, and on over­
cont. Thol'O was no other bedding iu tho house except that 
on tho bell occupied by tho clofcntlant nnd his <laughter, 
nnd it is fuir to presume, from tho above facts, (11ud 
tho jury must hnve come to thnt conclusion,) that the 
dcfondnnt nntl his clnughtor intended to occnpy tho snmc 
bod nt tho river rnnch thnt 11ight; thorcforo thoy were 11ot pro­
vided with nny extra bedclothes. Idu Gurdnor testified that 
during ihe months of December, 1887, nnd Jnnunry, 1888, her 
futlic1· kept stock nt the River rnnch. . He would go there two 
or th1·ce times a week to feed them. Thnt either l\Inucl 1· 

.. 
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80lf would aocompnuy him. Thnt tbero was but ono boclin tho 
cnbin at the River ranch, nnd he novor used to tnke nny extra 
bedclothes. 

Appcllnnt ussigns ns en·or .tho giving: of the instructiom1 
defining "ronsonnble doubt," claiming thnt they are conflicting. 
We hnu occnsion to pnss upon the snmo quoslion in tho onso of 
State v. Potts, ante, 380, <leciued nt this term. We there held 
thnt the instrnctiou complnined of, when 1·end in connection 
with t.110 statutory definition of "rensonablo doubt," WIJB not a 
reversible el'l'or. The anme rule will apply in this cnse. 

Tho coul't did not err in giving tho im1tructio11 na to tho 
weight nncl offoet to l>o given to t110 dofondnnt's evidence. 
'fhi1-1 inRtructiou w11s given nuu npprovod of in tho cnso of 
Pcu11fo v. Oro11i11, :J,! Cul. Hm, n11<1 11111,1 been npprovou of in 
tho following c1U:1u1:1: Stale v. Jly11w1·, lo Nov. M; P,:oplt: v. 11/u1'­
row, (iU Cnl. 147; Pcuple v. Whcr:lm·, Gti Cal. 78; 2 Puc. Hop. 8U2; 
People v. O'Ncal, 67 Cnl, 370; 7 Puc. Rep. 700; l'_eoplev. Knapp, 
71 Cnl. 10; 11 Pnc. Rep. 703; ,'Jlale v. Sle1·relt, 71 Iowa, 388; 32 
N. W. Hep. 387: Bre.~sfor v. People, 117 Ill. 430; 8 N. E. Hep. 

' 62; nnd in n numbo1· of other stntos. Tho instruction <loos not 
' invndo the provinco of tho jury. It lenvcs it to them to deter­

mine what crotlit should be givou to tho ·dofon<lnnt's tostimouy, 
nfter considering nll the fncts iu the cnao. Tho rnlings of tho 
court sustaining objections to cortnin questions propoundotl to 
the witness Idn Gnrduor fo1· t.110 purpose of showing her a11imus 

towards tho dofondnnt nro nlso n11signod ns error. 'l'ho rnlingR, 
however, nro immaterial ,mu 1m11cccoasn1·y to be cousidorcu, for 
tho reason that tho witness wns nftcrwards allowed to nnswor 
questions of tho snmo import, nnd by her nnswers fully tstab­
lished her sy1upnthy with tho prosecution. Tht:1 evidence in 
thiH cnso justifies tho verdict. 1'ho conobomtiug circumst1mccs 
nro sufliciout to convince the minds of n jury of the guilt of tho 
dcfondaut. J udgmont uffirmocl. 
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